2001-03



LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF QUEENSLAND

FIRST SESSION OF THE FIFTIETH PARLIAMENT

VOTES AND PROCEEDINGS

NO. 131

TUESDAY, 7 OCTOBER 2003

CONTENTS

ADJOURNMENT	
ATTENDANCE	
AUSTRALIAN CRIME COMMISSION (QUEENSLAND) BILL	
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION LEGISLATION AMENDMENT BILL	
LIQUOR AMENDMENT BILL	
MATTERS OF PRIVILEGE	
MATTERS OF PUBLIC INTEREST	
MEETING OF THE ASSEMBLY	1216
MINISTERIAL PAPERS TABLED BY THE CLERK	
MINISTERIAL STATEMENTS	1220
MOTIONS FOR DISALLOWANCE—	
COMMERCIAL AND CONSUMER TRIBUNAL REGULATION 2003	
RECORDING OF EVIDENCE AMENDMENT REGULATION (NO. 1) 2003	
PAPERS TABLED DURING THE RECESS	
PERSONAL EXPLANATION	
PETITIONS	1216
POSTPONED ORDERS – GOVERNMENT BUSINESS	1224
PRIVATE MEMBERS' STATEMENTS	
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE - PAPER	
PUBLIC HEALTH (INFECTION CONTROL FOR PERSONAL APPEARANCE SERVICES) BILL	
PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE - PAPER	
QUESTIONS WITHOUT NOTICE	
SCRUTINY OF LEGISLATION COMMITTEE - PAPER	1221
STATEMENT BY LEADER OF THE HOUSE—	
HOURS AND ORDER OF BUSINESS FOR TODAY	
STATUTORY INSTRUMENTS	
TOURISM SERVICES BILL	
TOURISM, RACING AND FAIR TRADING (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) BILL	1223

1 MEETING OF THE ASSEMBLY

The Assembly met at 9.30am, pursuant to adjournment. The Speaker (Honourable R. K. Hollis) read prayers.

2 ASSENT TO BILLS

Letters from the Governor were reported, informing the House that Her Excellency the Governor had, in the name of Her Majesty, assented to the following Bills on the dates indicated—

11 September 2003-

A Bill for an Act amend the *Marine Parks Act 1982* (*Marine Parks Amendment Act 2003* – Act No. 50 of 2003)

A Bill for an Act to repeal the Irvinebank State Treatment Works (Sale and Operation) Act 1990, and for related matters (Irvinebank State Treatment Works Repeal Act 2003 – Act No. 51 of 2003)

15 September 2003-

A Bill for an Act about the provision of housing and related matters (*Housing Act 2003* – Act No. 52 of 2003)

A Bill for an Act to amend the *Building Act 1975* (*Building Amendment Act 2003* – Act No. 53 of 2003)

18 September 2003-

A Bill for an Act to amend the *Transport Infrastructure Act 1994*, and for other purposes (*Transport Infrastructure and Another Act Amendment Act 2003* – Act No. 54 of 2003)

A Bill for an Act to amend the criminal law, and for other purposes (*Evidence (Protection of Children) Amendment Act 2003* – Act No. 55 of 2003)

A Bill for an Act to amend the *Mineral Resources Act 1989* and the *Petroleum Act 1923* (*Mineral Resources and Another Act Amendment Act 2003* – Act No. 56 of 2003)

A Bill for an Act to provide for Queensland's involvement in relation to the Convention on Jurisdiction, Applicable Law, Recognition, Enforcement and Co-operation in respect of Parental Responsibility and Measures for the Protection of Children, and for other purposes (*Child Protection (International Measures) Act 2003* – Act No. 57 of 2003)

A Bill for an Act to amend the *Pastoral Workers' Accommodation Act 1980 (Pastoral Workers' Accommodation Amendment Act 2003* – Act No. 58 of 2003)

A Bill for an Act to provide for the approval of the establishment or recognition of universities, approval of the operation of overseas higher education institutions or interstate universities, accreditation of courses offered by non-university providers, and for other purposes (*Higher Education (General Provisions) Act 2003* – Act No. 59 of 2003)

3 MATTER OF PRIVILEGE (Hansard p.3590, 9.31am)

Leader of the Opposition (Mr Springborg) rose on a matter of privilege.

4 PETITIONS

The following paper petition, lodged with the Clerk by the Member indicated, was received—

Mr Choi from 179 petitioners requesting the House to not build the proposed Ambulance Station on the corner of Randall Road and Old Cleveland Road, East Birkdale.

The following E-petition, sponsored by the Member indicated, was received—

Mr Johnson from 150 petitioners requesting the House to reassess the discriminatory cut backs of regional race meetings throughout regional Queensland and reinstate all race meetings and ensure prize money, as race meetings are an essential part of the social fabric in rural, regional and remote areas.

5 PAPERS TABLED DURING THE RECESS

The Clerk informed the House that the following papers, received during the recess, were tabled on the dates indicated—

12 September 2003—

Response from the Minister for Local Government and Planning (Mrs J Cunningham) to a paper petition presented by Mrs Pratt from 115 petitioners in total regarding laws in relation to dangerous dogs (Hansard p.3590)

Response from the Minister for Innovation and Information Economy (Mr P Lucas) to a paper petition presented by Mr Pitt from 559 petitioners in total regarding the performance of the electricity distribution network in the Innisfail area (Hansard p.3591)

16 September 2003-

Response from the Minister for Local Government and Planning (Mrs J Cunningham) to a paper petition presented by Mr Pearce from 175 petitioners in total regarding a development application in relation to a feedlot at Alton Downs (Hansard p.3592)

Queensland Treasury Corporation - Annual Report 2002-03

17 September 2003—

Report under Section 56A(4) of the Statutory Instruments Act 1992 by the Minister for Environment (Mr Wells)

19 September 2003-

Government response from the Premier and Minister for Trade (Mr Beattie) to the Legal, Constitutional and Administrative Review Committee's Report No. 39 entitled *The Role of the Queensland Parliament in Treaty Making – Review of Tabling Procedure*

24 September 2003—

Letter, dated 22 September 2003, from the Premier and Minister for Trade (Mr Beattie) to the Clerk of the Parliament referring to correspondence received by the Premier from the Commonwealth Parliament's Joint Standing Committee on Treaties regarding proposed international treaty actions tabled in both Houses of the Commonwealth Parliament on 9 September 2003 including National Interest Analyses for each of the proposed treaty actions listed in the correspondence.

Response from the Minister for Natural Resources and Minister for Mines (Mr Robertson) to two paper petitions presented by Mr Seeney from a total of 660 petitioners regarding amendments to the *Vegetation Management Act 1999* and the *Land Act 1994* to commission an open and independent review of the State's vegetation management laws. (Hansard p.3593)

Discussion paper entitled Review of the Retail Shop Leases Act 1994

Response from the Minister for Natural Resources and Minister for Mines (Mr Robertson) to a paper petition presented by Mrs C Scott from 95 petitioners regarding the stock route/road leading from Cusack Road to the Burdekin River, near Charters Towers (Hansard p.3594)

25 September 2003-

Report under section 56A(4) of the *Statutory Instruments Act 1992* by the Minister for Health and Minister Assisting the Premier on Women's Policy (Mrs Edmond)

Auditor-General of Queensland Audit Report No. 1 2003-04 – Results of Audits Performed for 2001-02 as at 31 July 2003, including an erratum to the report

Queensland Audit Office Auditing Standards, September 2003

Response from Minister for Natural Resources and Minister for Mines (Mr Robertson) to a paper petition presented by Mr Mulherin from 3051 petitioners regarding leasehold land at East Point, Mackay (Hansard p.3595)

26 September 2003-

Response from Minister for Emergency Services and Minister Assisting the Premier in North Queensland (Mr Reynolds) to three paper petitions presented by Mr Malone from a total of 1196 petitioners regarding ambulance response times to the areas situated west of Mackay along the Peak Downs Highway and the Pioneer Valley (Hansard p.3595)

Report under section 56A(4) of the *Statutory Instruments Act 1992* by the Minister for Police and Corrective Services and Minister Assisting the Premier on the Carpentaria Minerals Province (Mr McGrady)

29 September 2003-

Administrative Arrangements Order (No. 2) 2003

Response from the Minister for Local Government and Planning (Mrs J Cunningham) to a paper petition presented by Mr Lawlor from 139 petitioners regarding the Gold Coast

Harbour Vision 2020 Project – Report No. 1, prepared by the Gold Coast City Council (Hansard p.3596)

30 September 2003-

Report on visit to Brazil and Chile 16-30 July 2003 by the Honourable Tom Barton, MP Minister for State Development

Response from the Minister for Families and Minister for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Policy and Minister for Disability Services and Minister for Seniors (Ms Spence) to a paper petition presented by Mrs Miller from 1692 petitioners regarding current legislation in relation to permanency planning for children and young people in long-term care of the Department of Families (Hansard p.3598)

Response from the Minister for Primary Industries and Rural Communities (Mr Palaszczuk) to an e-petition sponsored by Ms Male from 439 petitioners and a paper petition presented by Ms Male from 39 petitioners both regarding raw milk sales (Hansard p.3598)

Response from the Minister for Primary Industries and Rural Communities (Mr Palaszczuk) to a paper petition presented by Mr Strong from 93 petitioners regarding a request to close the Burnett Heads Harbour to commercial fishing (Hansard p.3599)

Apprenticeship and Traineeship Ombudsman – Annual Report 2002-03

Training and Employment Board – Annual Report 2002-03

Training Recognition Council – Annual Report 2002-03

Supreme Court Library Committee – Annual Report 2002-03

Addendum to the Queensland Treasury Corporation Annual Report 2002-03 tabled on 16 September 2003

1 October 2003—

Report under section 56A(4) of the *Statutory Instruments Act 1992* by the Minister for Emergency Services and Minister Assisting the Premier in North Queensland (Mr Reynolds)

2 October 2003-

Response from the Premier and Minister for Trade (Mr Beattie) to an e-petition sponsored by Mr Fouras from 442 petitioners regarding the General Agreement on Trade in Services (Hansard p.3600)

Response from the Minister for Emergency Services and Minister Assisting the Premier in North Queensland (Mr Reynolds) to a paper petition presented by Mr Malone from 153 petitioners regarding ambulance response times to the areas situated west of Mackay along the Peak Downs Highway and the Pioneer Valley (Hansard p.3600)

6 October 2003-

Report of the Queensland Ombudsman entitled *An investigation into the adequacy of the actions of certain government agencies in relation to the safety, well being and care of the late baby Kate. who died aged 10 weeks*

Mt Gravatt Showgrounds Trust – Annual Report for the period 1 May 2002 to 30 April 2003 Late tabling statement regarding the Mt Gravatt Showgrounds Trust Annual Report for the period 1 May 2002 to 30 April 2003

6 STATUTORY INSTRUMENTS

The following statutory instruments were tabled by the Clerk—

Liquor Act 1992—

Liquor Amendment Regulation (No. 2) 2003, No. 167 and Explanatory Note for No. 167 *Financial Administration and Audit Act 1977-*

Financial Administration and Audit Amendment Regulation (No. 1) 2003, No. 207 *Police Powers and Responsibilities Act 2000*—

Police Powers and Responsibilities Amendment Regulation (No. 4) 2003, No. 208 Corrective Services Act 2000—

Corrective Services Amendment Regulation (No. 2) 2003, No. 209

Forestry Act 1959-

Forestry (State Forests) Amendment Regulation (No. 1) 2003, No. 210

Plant Protection Act 1989—

Plant Protection Amendment Regulation (No. 3) 2003, No. 211

Fisheries Act 1994—

Fisheries (Coral Reef Fin Fish) Management Plan 2003, No. 212 and Explanatory Notes and Regulatory Impact Statement for No. 212

Fisheries Amendment Regulation (No. 2) 2003, No. 213 and Explanatory Notes for No. 213 Fisheries Amendment Regulation (No. 3) 2003 No. 214 and Explanatory Notes and Regulatory Impact Statement for No. 214

Fisheries Management Plans Amendment Management Plan (No. 2) 2003 No. 215 and Explanatory Notes and Regulatory Impact Statement for No. 215

Fair Trading and Another Act Amendment Act 2002—

Proclamation commencing remaining provisions, No. 216

Business Names Act 1962-

Business Names Amendment Regulation (No. 1) 2003, No. 217

Aboriginal Land Act 1991—

Aboriginal Land Amendment Regulation (No. 1) 2003, No. 218

Casino Control Act 1982, Charitable and Non-Profit Gaming Act 1999, Gaming Machine Act 1991, Interactive Gambling (Player Protection) Act 1998, Keno Act 1996, Lotteries Act 1997, Wagering Act 1998—

Gambling Legislation Amendment Regulation (No. 1) 2003, No. 219

Duties Act 2001, Taxation Administration Act 2001—

Revenue Legislation Amendment Regulation (No. 1) 2003, No. 220

Duties Act 2001—

Duties (Transitional) Regulation 2003, No. 221

Health Services Act 1991—

Health Services Amendment Regulation (No. 2) 2003, No. 222

Guardianship and Administration Act 2000—

Guardianship and Administration Amendment Regulation (No. 2) 2003, No. 223

Aboriginal Land Act 1991—

Aboriginal Land Amendment Regulation (No. 2) 2003, No. 224

Integrated Planning Act 1997—

Integrated Planning Amendment Regulation (No. 3) 2003, No. 225

Petroleum Act 1923-

Petroleum (Entry Permission—Chevron Services Australia Pty Ltd) Notice 2003, No. 226 Police Powers and Responsibilities Act 2000—

Police Powers and Responsibilities (Rugby World Cup) Regulation 2003, No. 227

Corrective Services Amendment Act 2003—

Proclamation commencing remaining provisions, No. 228

Civil Liability Act 2003—

Civil Liability Regulation 2003, No. 229 and Explanatory Notes for No. 229

Liquor Act 1992—

Liquor Amendment Regulation (No. 4) 2003, No. 231

Building Amendment Act 2003—

Proclamation commencing remaining provisions, No. 232

Building Act 1975—

Standard Building Amendment Regulation (No. 1) 2003, No. 233

Local Government Act 1993—

Local Government (Implementation of Reviewable Local Government Matters) Regulation 2003, No. 234

Workplace Health and Safety Act 1995—

Workplace Health and Safety Amendment Regulation (No. 4) 2003, No. 235 and Regulatory Impact Statement for No. 235

Transport Operations (Marine Pollution) Act 1995—

Transport Operations (Marine Pollution) Amendment Regulation (No. 2) 2003, No. 236

Appeal Costs Fund Act 1973, Electoral Act 1992, Evidence Act 1977, Freedom of Information Act 1992, Justices Act 1886, Small Claims Tribunals Act 1973, Supreme Court of Queensland Act 1991—

Justice Legislation (Variation of Costs and Fees) Regulation (No. 1) 2003, No. 237 *Nature Conservation Act 1992—*

Nature Conservation (Protected Areas) Amendment Regulation (No. 2) 2003, No. 238

Agricultural Chemicals Distribution Control Act 1966, Brands Act 1915, Chemical Usage (Agricultural and Veterinary) Control Act 1988, Stock Act 1915, Veterinary Surgeons Act 1936—
Primary Industries Legislation Amendment Regulation (No. 1) 2003, No. 239

Water Act 2000—

Water Amendment Regulation (No. 4) 2003, No. 241 Pastoral Workers' Accommodation Amendment Act 2003— Proclamation commencing remaining provisions, No. 242

7 MINISTERIAL PAPERS TABLED BY THE CLERK

The following ministerial papers were tabled by The Clerk—

- (a) Minister for Education (Ms Bligh)—
 Non-conforming paper petition regarding Booroobin Sudbury State School
- (b) Attorney-General and Minister for Justice (Mr Welford)—
 Response from the Attorney-General and Minister for Justice (Mr Welford) to a paper petition presented by Mr Quinn from 29686 petitioners regarding double jeopardy laws in Queensland (Hansard p.3602)

8 MINISTERIAL STATEMENTS (Hansard p.3603, 9.33am)

- (a) Premier and Minister for Trade (Mr Beattie) made a ministerial statement relating to Beyond Blue.
- (b) Premier and Minister for Trade (Mr Beattie) made a ministerial statement relating to transport infrastructure in south east Queensland.
- (c) Premier and Minister for Trade (Mr Beattie) made a ministerial statement relating to physical and sexual abuse of children in care.
- (d) Premier and Minister for Trade (Mr Beattie) made a ministerial statement relating to a compensation claim by Sir Joh Bjelke–Petersen.
 - Papers: Mr Beattie, during his statement, tabled the following papers—
 Letter, dated 2 October 2003, from C W Lohe, Crown Solicitor to Mr Beattie entitled Sir Joh Bjelke–Petersen request for ex gratia payment

 Draft letter to Sir Joh Bjelke–Petersen relating to a submission for an ex gratia payment
- (e) Deputy Premier, Treasurer and Minister for Sport (Mr Mackenroth) made a ministerial statement relating to the development of a State Tennis Centre at Tennyson.
- (f) Minister for Education (Ms Bligh) made a ministerial statement relating to *Poetry on the Move*.
- (g) Minister for Health and Minister Assisting the Premier on Women's Policy (Mrs Edmond) made a ministerial statement relating to the Hospital Rebuilding Program.
- (h) Minister for Police and Corrective Services and Minister Assisting the Premier on the Carpentaria Minerals Province (Mr McGrady) made a ministerial statement relating to Crime Prevention Week and police beats.
- (i) Minister for Transport and Minister for Main Roads (Mr Bredhauer) made a ministerial statement relating to public transport infrastructure.
- (j) Minister for Public Works and Minister for Housing (Mr Schwarten) made a ministerial statement relating to housing affordability.

- (k) Minister for Families and Minister for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Policy and Minister for Disability Services and Minister for Seniors (Ms Spence) made a ministerial statement relating to child abuse.
- (I) Minister for Primary Industries and Rural Communities (Mr Palaszczuk) made a ministerial statement relating to the outlook for Queensland's primary industries.
- (m) Minister for Natural Resources and Minister for Mines (Mr Robertson) made a ministerial statement relating to safety in the Queensland mining industry.
- (n) Minister for Emergency Services and Minister Assisting the Premier in North Queensland (Mr Reynolds) made a ministerial statement relating to bushfire fighting methods.

9 STATEMENT BY LEADER OF THE HOUSE - HOURS AND ORDER OF BUSINESS FOR TODAY

Leader of the House (Ms Bligh) made the following statement—

'I advise Honourable Members that the House can continue to meet past 7.30pm this day.

The House will break for dinner at 7pm and resume its sitting at 8.30pm.

The Order of Business shall then be Government Business, followed by a 30 minute adjournment debate.'

10 PERSONAL EXPLANATION (Hansard p.3632, 10.22am)

A personal explanation was made by Mr Mickel.

Paper: Mr Mickel, by leave, during his speech, tabled the following paper—

Copy of advertisement in South-West News, dated 27 August 2003, entitled Promoting

Small Business in Ryan

11 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE - PAPER

Acting Chair of the Public Accounts Committee (Dr Watson) tabled the following paper—

Public Accounts Committee—

Report No. 64 entitled *Inquiry into whether the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1977* should be amended to permit the Queensland Audit Office to undertake services in addition to those currently specified in the Act

12 SCRUTINY OF LEGISLATION COMMITTEE - PAPER

Chair of the Scrutiny of Legislation Committee (Mr Pitt) tabled the following paper—

Scrutiny of Legislation Committee—

Alert Digest No. 10 of 2003

13 PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE - PAPER

Chair of the Public Works Committee (Mr Livingstone) tabled the following paper—

Public Works Committee—

Report No. 82 entitled Inquiry into the upgrade of the Queensland Police Service district headquarters and watchhouse at Mount Isa

14 PRIVATE MEMBERS' STATEMENTS (Hansard p.3633, 10.25am)

Private Members' statements were made.

15 QUESTIONS WITHOUT NOTICE (Hansard p.3634, 10.31am)

Questions without notice were asked.

Paper: Minister for Innovation and Information Economy (Mr Lucas) tabled the following

paper-

Document entitled Gene Technology [in Agriculture]

Questions continued.

Questions concluded.

16 MATTERS OF PUBLIC INTEREST (Hansard p.3646, 11.30am)

Matters of public interest were debated.

Papers: Mr McNamara, during his speech, tabled the following papers—

Copy of newspaper article entitled Bludging myth and mythical statistics

Two documents relating to statistical information on employment projects in the Electorate of Hervey Bay from October 1998 to August 2003 and achievements from

February 2001 to August 2003

Debate continued.

Paper: Miss Simpson, during her speech, tabled the following paper—

Non-conforming petition with 1570 signatures relating to the Health Care System

Debate continued.

Debate concluded.

17 PUBLIC HEALTH (INFECTION CONTROL FOR PERSONAL APPEARANCE SERVICES) BILL (Hansard p.3658, 12.31pm)

Minister for Health and Minister Assisting the Premier on Women's Policy (Mrs Edmond), by leave, moved – That leave be granted to bring in a Bill for an Act to minimise the risk of infection that may result from the provision of personal appearance services, and for other purposes. Question put and agreed to.

Message: The following message from Her Excellency the Governor was received and read—

"MESSAGE

PUBLIC HEALTH (INFECTION CONTROL FOR PERSONAL APPEARANCE SERVICES) BILL Constitution of Queensland 2001, section 68

I, QUENTIN BRYCE, Governor, recommend to the Legislative Assembly a Bill intituled—

A Bill for an Act to minimise the risk of infection that may result from the provision of personal appearance services, and for other purposes.

Quentin Bryce GOVERNOR

2 October 2003"

Bill and Explanatory Notes presented by Mrs Edmond, Bill read a first time and *ordered* to be printed.

Mrs Edmond moved – That the Bill be now read a second time.

Debate ensued.

Miss Simpson moved – That the debate be now adjourned.

Question put and agreed to.

Ordered – That the resumption of the debate be made an order of the day for tomorrow.

18 AUSTRALIAN CRIME COMMISSION (QUEENSLAND) BILL (Hansard p.3660, 12.41pm)

Minister for Police and Corrective Services and Minister Assisting the Premier on the Carpentaria Minerals Province (Mr McGrady), by leave, moved – That leave be granted to bring in a Bill for an Act to make provision for the operation of the Australian Crime Commission in Queensland, and for other purposes.

Question put and agreed to.

Bill and Explanatory Notes presented by Mr McGrady, Bill read a first time and *ordered* to be printed.

Mr McGrady moved – That the Bill be now read a second time.

Debate ensued.

Mr Johnson moved – That the debate be now adjourned.

Question put and agreed to.

Ordered – That the resumption of the debate be made an order of the day for tomorrow.

19 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION LEGISLATION AMENDMENT BILL (Hansard p.3663, 12.53pm)

Minister for Environment (Mr Wells), by leave, moved – That leave be granted to bring in a Bill for an Act to amend the *Environmental Protection Act 1994*, and for other purposes.

Question put and agreed to.

Bill and Explanatory Notes presented by Mr Wells, Bill read a first time and *ordered* to be printed. Mr Wells moved – That the Bill be now read a second time.

Debate ensued.

Miss Simpson moved – That the debate be now adjourned.

Question put and agreed to.

Ordered – That the resumption of the debate be made an order of the day for tomorrow.

20 TOURISM, RACING AND FAIR TRADING (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) BILL (Hansard p.3665, 2.31pm)

Minister for Tourism and Racing and Minister for Fair Trading (Ms Rose), by leave, moved – That leave be granted to bring in a Bill for an Act to amend legislation administered by the Minister for Tourism and Racing and the Minister for Fair Trading, and for other purposes.

Question put and agreed to.

Bill and Explanatory Notes presented by Ms Rose, Bill read a first time and *ordered* to be printed.

Ms Rose moved – That the Bill be now read a second time.

Debate ensued.

Miss Simpson moved – That the debate be now adjourned.

Question put and agreed to.

Ordered – That the resumption of the debate be made an order of the day for tomorrow.

21 <u>LIQUOR AMENDMENT BILL</u> (Hansard p.3667, 2.41pm)

Order of the day read for the adjourned debate on the motion of the Minister for Tourism and Racing and Minister for Fair Trading (Ms Rose) – That the Bill be now read a second time.

Debate resumed.

Question put and agreed to.

Bill read a second time.

Bill committed on the motion of Ms Rose.

In Committee

Clauses 1 to 18, as read, agreed to.

Schedule, as read, agreed to.

Bill to be reported without amendment.

In the House

Bill reported without amendment.

Ms Rose, by leave, moved – That the Bill be now read a third time.

Question put and agreed to.

Bill read a third time and passed.

Title agreed to.

22 TOURISM SERVICES BILL (Hansard p.3689, 5pm)

Order of the day read for the adjourned debate on the motion of the Minister for Tourism and Racing and Minister for Fair Trading (Ms Rose) – That the Bill be now read a second time. Debate resumed.

Paper: Mr Cummins, during his speech, tabled the following paper—

Brochure produced by Australian Outback Lodges Pty Ltd entitled A uniquely

Australian accommodation experience

Debate continued.

Question put and agreed to. Bill read a second time.

Bill committed on the motion of Ms Rose.

In Committee

Clauses 1 to 101, as read, agreed to. Schedules 1 and 2, as read, agreed to. Bill to be reported without amendment.

In the House

Bill reported without amendment.

Ms Rose, by leave, moved – That the Bill be now read a third time.

Question put and agreed to.

Bill read a third time and passed.

Title agreed to.

23 MATTER OF PRIVILEGE (Hansard p.3722, 9.41pm)

Premier and Minister for Trade (Mr Beattie) rose on a matter of privilege.

Papers: Mr Beattie, during his speech, tabled the following papers—

Copy of a letter, dated 19 September 2003, from Mr Steve Bishop, Principal Media Advisor, Office of the Premier and Minister for Trade, to Mr Gary Linnell, Editor, *The Bulletin*, relating to Bob Bottom

Various documents, including media articles and extracts from (a) the Kimmins Report, Inquiry into Allegations of Misconduct in the Investigation of Paedophilia in Queensland and (b) daily Hansard

24 POSTPONED ORDERS - GOVERNMENT BUSINESS

Minister for Tourism and Racing and Minister for Fair Trading (Ms Rose) moved – That Government Business Orders of the Day Nos. 3 to 19 be postponed until a later hour of the sitting.

Question put and agreed to.

25 COMMERCIAL AND CONSUMER TRIBUNAL REGULATION 2003 - MOTION FOR DISALLOWANCE (Hansard p.3723, 9.47pm)

Deputy Leader of the Opposition (Mr Seeney), pursuant to notice, moved – That the Commercial and Consumer Tribunal Regulation 2003 (Subordinate Legislation No. 144 of 2003) tabled in the Parliament on 19 August 2003, be disallowed.

Debate ensued.

Question put.

The House divided.

AYES 16-

Copeland Hopper * Lee Long Pratt Seeney Watson * Flvnn Horan Lingard Quinn Simpson Hobbs Johnson Malone Rowell Springborg

Sullivan, C

Sullivan, T *

Welford

Wells

Wilson

NOES 63-

Barry	Cunningham, E	Lawlor	Nolan	Roberts, N	Strong
Barton	Cunningham, J	Lee	Nuttall	Robertson	Struthers
Bligh	Edmond	Livingstone	Palaszczuk	Rodgers	Sullivan, C
Boyle	Fenlon	Lucas	Pearce	Rose	Sullivan, T *
Bredhauer	Foley, C	Male	Phillips	Schwarten	Welford
Briskey	Foley, M	McGrady	Pitt	Scott, C	Wellington
Choi	Fouras	McNamara	Poole	Scott, D	Wells
Clark, E	Hayward	Mickel	Purcell	Shine	Wilson
Clark, L	Jarratt	Miller	Reeves *	Smith	
Croft	Keech	Molloy	Reynolds	Spence	
Cummins	Lavarch	Mulherin	Roberts, E	Stone	

^{*} Tellers

Question negatived.

26 RECORDING OF EVIDENCE AMENDMENT REGULATION (NO. 1) 2003 – MOTION FOR DISALLOWANCE (Hansard p.3729, 10.31pm)

Leader of the Opposition (Mr Springborg), pursuant to notice, moved – That the Recording of Evidence Amendment Regulation (No. 1) 2003 (Subordinate Legislation No. 155 of 2003) tabled in the Parliament on 19 August 2003, be disallowed. Debate ensued.

Roberts, E

Springborg

The House divided.

AYES 19— Copeland

Cunningham, E Flynn Hobbs	Horan Johnson Lee Long	Malone Pratt Quinn	Rowell Seeney Simpson	Watson * Wellington	
NOES 59—					
Barry	Cummins	Lavarch	Molloy	Reeves *	Smith
Barton	Cunningham, J	Lawlor	Mulherin	Reynolds	Stone
Bligh	Edmond	Lee	Nolan	Roberts, N	Strong
Boyle	Fenlon	Livingstone	Nuttall	Robertson	Struthers

Lingard

Barton	Cunningham, J	Lawlor	Mulherin	Reynolds	
Bligh	Edmond	Lee	Nolan	Roberts, N	
Boyle	Fenlon	Livingstone	Nuttall	Robertson	
Bredhauer	Foley, C	Lucas	Palaszczuk	Rodgers	
Briskey	Foley, M	Male	Pearce	Rose	
Choi	Fouras	McGrady	Phillips	Schwarten	
Clark, E	Hayward	McNamara	Pitt	Scott, C	
Clark, L	Jarratt	Mickel	Poole	Scott, D	
Croft	Keech	Miller	Purcell	Shine	

^{*} Tellers

Question negatived.

27 ADJOURNMENT (Hansard p.3736, 11.17pm)

Hopper *

Leader of the House (Ms Bligh) moved – That this House do now adjourn. Debate ensued.

Question put and agreed to.

The House adjourned at 11.48pm.

28 ATTENDANCE

The following members were present—

_	•			
Attwood	Cunningham, E	Keech	Molloy	Roberts, E
Barry	Cunningham, J	Lavarch	Mulherin	Roberts, N
Barton	Edmond	Lawlor	Nolan	Robertson
Beattie	English	Lee	Nuttall	Rodgers
Bell	Fenlon	Lee Long	Palaszczuk	Rose
Bligh	Flynn	Lingard	Pearce	Rowell
Boyle	Foley, C	Livingstone	Phillips	Schwarten
Bredhauer	Foley, M	Lucas	Pitt	Scott, C
Briskey	Fouras	Mackenroth	Poole	Scott, D
Choi	Hayward	Male	Pratt	Seeney
Clark, E	Hobbs	Malone	Purcell	Shine
Clark, L	Hopper	McGrady	Quinn	Simpson
Copeland	Horan	McNamara	Reeves	Smith
Croft	Jarratt	Mickel	Reilly	Spence
Cummins	Johnson	Miller	Reynolds	Springborg

R K HOLLIS SPEAKER N J LAURIE CLERK OF THE PARLIAMENT

Stone

Strong

Struthers

Sullivan, C

Sullivan, T

Wellington

Watson

Welford

Wells Wilson